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FEDERAL ELECTION COM4TISSION

The above-described material was removed from this
file pursuant to the following exemption provided in the
Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. Section D52 (b):

(1) Classified Information

(2) Internal rules and
priactices

(3) Exempted by other
s t a,- u te

(4) Trade secrets and
commercial or
financial information

(6)

(7)

Personal priv cy

Inve stigatory
files

(8) Bank<ing
In formation

(9) Well Inform .tion
(geographic or
geophysical)

(5) Internal Documents

Signed _ _ nn

da.t-e _ _ _ _ _ _ _

FEC 9-21-77

_ z



DATE:~ NOVEMBER 2, 1978

TRANSMITTAL TIME
TO WESTERN UNION: 1:00 pm

VIA TELEGRAM

THE COMMISSION HAS RECEIVED A COMPLAINT FROM THE

NATIONAL RIGHT TO WORK COMMITTEE WHICH ALLEGES THAT

YOU HAVE VIOLATED 2 U.S.C. §441a(a) (2) (A) and §441(a) (f)

OF THE FEDERAL ELECTION CAMPAIGN ACT.

THE COMMISSION HAS DETERMINED THAT ON THE BASIS OF

THE INFORMATION IN THE COMPLAINT THERE IS NO REASON TO

-- BELIEVE THAT A VIOLATION OF ANY STATUTE WITHIN ITS

JURISDICTION HAS BEEN COMMITTED. ACCORDINGLY, THE

COMMISSION INTENDS TO CLOSE ITS FILE ON THIS MATTER.

A LETTER AND COPY OF THE COMPLAINT WILL FOLLOW.

SINCERELY,

WILLIAM C. OLDAKER
GENERAL COUNSEL



FEDERAl ELECTION COMMISSION
25 K sRI I I N.W

4 f Is VA Y\SH I\(, 1 N) 2040(1

November 2, 1978
CERTIFIED MAIL

RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

The Christie Committee
Laurel Taylor

815 Brazos, Suite 703
Austin, Texas 78701

Re: TIUR 784

D-a r Mr. Taylor:

I am forward i wq foi. your information the enclosed

i which ,:; received by the Commission.

'".-- r- hat;io ha determined that on the basis

>ecomp-] nnj-t thIc!re is no reason
Lo D . i V '' Lo:oa,. Lutc. inithin iec a t

cju :is) n cioitt .edc. Accordingly, the
Comvi c .<i ine i-o :lose% its fi.le on toe matter

'o" ' y ; 0 <i-m,:t-lon, a co Y of our report toLW h,2- C<::.:L;oni n L to! ma12tter t s encloised.

Si.ncerely,

William. C. Ol-ake:_
(C.:i ,< rc.. . .. 0 ou I S > ]



IN

"ht,

" FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
l d 1325 K STREET N W

WASHINGTON,D{C, 20463

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

November 2, 1978

Messrs. Reed Larson & Henry L. Walther
National Right to Work Committee
8316 Arlington Boulevard

N Suite 600
Fairfax, Virginia 22038

Re: MUR 784(78)
Joe Christie
The Christie Committee

Dear Messrs. Larson & Walther:

CThe Federal Election Commi ;sion has reviewed the
allegations of your complaint dated October 30, 1978, and
has determined that on the basis of the information youprovided, there is no reason to believe that a violation
of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended

C (the "Act") has been committed.

In your complaint, you based your allegation that the
respondent had violated the Act on the legal premise that
the AFL-CIO COPE PCC and the PACs of the various unions
which are members of the AFL-CIO are affiliated. As you
are no doubt aware, this issue was raised by the National
Right to Work Committee in an earlier complaint, designated
MUR 354(76). In that matter, the Commission found there
was no reason to believe the Act had been violated and so
notified NRWC's Vice President Andrew Hare by letter
dated December 21, 1977.

Accord ingly, upon my recommendation the Commission has

decided to close its file in this matter.
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In your complaint, you do not alleqe any instance ofwhere political committew.; set up by a single internationalunion and its local unions have made contributions to the
respondent in excess of the $5,000 limitation. Neitherdo you allege any instance of where political committees
set up by the AFL-CIO and its state and local central
bodies have made contributions to the respondent
in excess of the $5,000 limitation. If you have informa-tion that such excessive contributions have been made,you may bring them to the Commisssion's attention through
another complaint.

Should additional information come to yourattention which you beliove establishes a violation of
the Act, please contact mc.

Sincerely,

I 11 1am' C0 -1 da ke r



BEFOR E THE FEDERAL EUCTION1 COW4ISIC

In the Matter of ))
Joe Christie ) M4R 784
The Christie Committee )

CERTIFICATION

I, Marjorie W. Emmons, Secretary to the Federal Election

Ccmission, do hereby certify that on Novenber 2, 1978, the Comission,

meeting in an Executive Session at which a quorm was present, determined

by a vote of 6-0 to adopt the recommendation of the General Counsel to

take the following actions in the above-captioned matter:

1. Find no reason to believe the Federal Election CaRpaign Act,
as amended, has been violated.

2. Close the file and send the letters attached to the First
General Counsel' s Report.

Attest:

Date W. Emmons
Secretary to the Comission



FEDi4VAL ELECTION COMMISSION
1325 K Street, N.W.

0 a:hington, D.C. 20463

FIRST GENEPAL COUNSEL'S PEPORT

DATE AND TI.E OF TRANSM1ITTAL
BY OGC TO THE COPMMISSION

MtJR NO. __1_it

DATE COMPLAIINT C LIVED
MBY 0CC_10/30/

MEMBER t"f I

COMPLAINANT'S NA4E: National Right to Work Committee
Reed Larson, President, and Henry

(NPWc) I
L. Walther

P '" ";POUIDENT ' S L.T. Ii:

^, f . .1VyI-- t ,

IUAL Ct4,0CC

2 U.S.C.

. ........ .... - C~ii ~ 7 T-,.

§441a(a), 44 1a (f)

MUR 354

- . ,. 'I. I

~... .. * 1C

.....( (A)- I" .. " .
-t

*, c. .. .,," . : .. <
... ... .. " '. ; !: 4 .]_5t !-'] }. " " t T!<r ;; .. ... f .... .: c7; : _C'

-~~ ~ ~ ~ ~~ n r, -,.1 ( D Tx:],r <•.- ,!-

L) L, ~
II

)r



-2-

This issue is identical to one raised by the same
complainants in MUR 354 ('76). In MUR 354 the Contutission
found that AFL-CIO COPE PCC and the PACs of the various
unions which are members of the AFL-CIO are not affiliated.
Further the Commission found that under 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(5)
the AFL-CIO COPE PCC mriy contribute up to $5,000 per
election and that each individual, international union PAC
may contribute up to $5,000 per election. NRWC was notified
of the Commission's findings on December 21, 1977 (see
attached letter).

The Commission's findings were based upon the Commission
regulations 11 C.F.R. 100.14(c) (2) (i) (B) and (C), 11 C.F.R.
110.3 (a) (1) (ii) (B) and (C) ; and upon the legislative history of
the Act which states:

"All of-the political committees set up by a
single international union and its local unions
are treated as a single political committee.

"All of the political committees set up by the
AFL-CIO and its state and local 2entral bodies
are treated as a single politicaL committee."
(Emphasis added)

(H. Rep. No. 94-1057, 94th

Cong., 2nd Sess., p. 58)

Thus, the Commission concludes, as it did in MUR 354,
that complainants' legal premise is erroneous and that the
AFL-CIO COPE PCC and the PACs of the various unions which
are members of the AFL-CIO are not subject to one con-
tribution limitation of $5,000.

Complainants do not allege any instance of where
political committees set up by a single international union
and its local unions have made contributions to the
respondent in excess of the $5,000 limitation. Neither do
complainants allege any instance of where political com-
mittees set up by the AFL-CIO and its state and local
central bodies have made contributions to the respondent
in excess of the $5,000 limitation. If such excessive
contributions have been made, complainant is not pre-
cluded from bringing them to the Cormission's attention
through another complaint.
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RECO.MENDATION

1. Find no reason to believe the Act has been violated.

2. Close the file and send the attached letters to
complainant and respondent.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Complaint
2. 12/21/77 letter to NRWC
3. Proposed Letters

C



0

FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

1325 K SIRFET NW.
WASHINGTOND.C. 20463

December 21, 1977

CERTIFIED MAIL
PRETTURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Mr. Andrew Hare
Vice-President National Right to Work

Committee
8316 Arlington Blvd., Suite 500
Fairfax, Virginia 22038

Dear Mr. Hare: RE: MUR 354 (76)

On December 20, 1977, the Federal Election Commission
notified you of the Commission's decision to institute suit
against the AFL-CIO with regard to certain practices raised
by you in MUR 354 (76) and the termination of its investiga-
tion of that case. With regard to the Commission's dismissal
of other matters raised in your complaint, as noted in my
]2t:r of August '3, 1977, the Co :uission concluded that
v u raiucd fcvr basic issues:

() Te isn s t nceF th AFL-CIO

)L<Lmen 4 s byvr Mea, y wn Lt. arxan,
C7and trhe cmloyment of s. Mary Zon by the

Carte e a r :;aigniio on a partial leave
o f 1:,ne (3 Cavs a weeM) from her job
as COP' escarch Director) makes its
expenditres for registration and aet-out-

rhe (o rives and communicatIion with
its mB -rs contLributions withi ta e

moaning of the Act;

I L I
, , .: )&e}, ,. i 0

... .. . O1'.::r~

... .. ..... ) C 1 .. .. ... ' ;
Vv . .I , :
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(3) The AFL-CIO General Fund transferred
$600,000 to the COPE Educational Fund
(between July 1, 1974 and June 30, .1975)
and the COPE Educational Fund transferred
$385,000 to the COPE Political Contributions
Committee (between January 1975 and May 1976),
thereby putting dues money (from the General
Fund) into a reporting fund which makes
contributions to federal candidates (COPE-PCC);

(4) The Act is discriminatorily unfair if
construed to except for purposes of the
contribution limits (2 U.S.C. §441a(a)(5))
the constituent union members of the
AFL-CIO as separate entities while treat-
ing the members of those unions as members
of the AFL-CIO, for purposes either of
communications to them or of registration
and get-out-the-vote drives (2 U.S.C. §441b(b ) (2 ) ) .""

The Commission's conclusion that no action should be
taken with regard to issues (1), (2) and (4) rests on the
following analysis:

Comolainant recognizes that 2 U.S.C.
§441b(b) (2) (A) exempts the general category
of communications from the proscription of
Section 441b (a) , permitting "conmunications
by a corporation to its stockholders and
executive or administrative personnel and
-'their families on any subject.' See U.S. v.

-- CIO 335 U.S. 106 (1948) (labor organization
may communicate partisan views to its

C members without running afoul of 18 U.S.C.
§610). Complainant charqes, however, that
while labor organizations are free to
c olmmunica be with their members, including
partisan corrcunications, they are not free
to cc)nduc t registration and gt-out-the-vote
drives which are partisan and that, since
the AFL-CIO' s hierarchy supported and
coordinated their activities %w.ith Carter K

• _u~

(V .
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any money spent for registration and get-
out-the-vote work is, by definition, partisan
and therefore not exempted from the definition
of contribution.

Complainant offers no specific evidence that
the AFL-CIO or AFL-CIO COPE, in seeking to
register voters or get people out to vote,
actually discriminated on a partisan basis;
complainant's allegations are all based
on the public record, mostly newspaper
articles, which describe, without specifics,
contacts between various AFL-CIO and AFL-CIO
COPE officers and political workers and
Carter campaign personnel. The nexus of
the complaint is that, since the AFL-CIO
supported Carter/Mondale, and believed that
registration and get-out-the-vote drives
in certain areas would aid Carter/Mondale
and conducted those drives with those
beliefs in mind, all of that activity must
be seen as partisan.

(1) This apparent assumption by complainant
that a registration or get-out-the-vote drive
is made partisan by targeting a particular
candidate is not borne out by the statute.
There is nothing in the statute to support

r this proposition; particularly since the
commulications subsection (2 U.S.C. §441b(b)
(2) (A)), protects the right the union to send
materials which try -to convince individuals
to vote (or register) on a partisan basis.
Subsection (b) (2) (B) establishes the right
to conduct registration and vote drives; but
limits the conduct of those drives to non-
partisan activity, a distinction which is
reflected in the Commission's Reoulations.
See 11 C.F.R. §114.3 and §114.4.._/ Absent

1/ Complainant protests thcat several. portions of the
Regulations are nol- in accord with the sactute, and specifically
has asked that the Cco'.,isi on forma liv reconsider them. Inasmuch
as the succifics of t.e inf'(?dual, regulations do not seem to be
drain into question lore ]b;v any pt §rticular facts there scens
to be no need to : 1 :1ne the in the context of this complaint.
The CoMaission may, in _Diuur e examinations of its Regulations,
wish to re-eamine the oe particularly challeng de in light
of plaintiff' s statements.

I. . ..-
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evidence (or even allegations) that the driveswere conducted in a partisan fashion, thecomplaint does not seeinto state any violation.Nor, since Congress exempted such communicationsand registration drives from the definition ofcontribution, would the Carter campaign'sacceptance by coordination of the expenditures,if proven, violate the prohibition againstfederally funded candidates accepting privateCOntributions. 26 U.S.C. § 9 003(b) (2).
(2) The undocumented assertion that more thanthe amount reported was actually spent forpartisan communications 

is founded on thesame assumptions as those noted above; becausemoney spent on registration and get-out-the-vote drives was "partisan" in complainant'sview, all costs with regard to these shouldbe reported In view of the logic set forthabove, the complaint also does not seem toset forth 41ny violation.

(4) Complaina nt suggests that the statute isfundamenltally unfair if it allows the constituentmember union, of the AFL-CIO to be treated asseparate entities for purposes of theContribution limits while treating the members
of those unions as members of the AFL-CIO for
purposes eith1er of comunications to them orregis trat ~ a 1nd vote drives ounder 2 U.S.C. § 4 41b(b)(2)(A) ocase law

e 'rfi n e S t h e m e a n i n g o f m e m b e H owsp e c i e rl
S u p r e m e C o u r t i n U . Ce , pr , e v 3 3 5 U-s .S' V- CI s , r, th1 0 1 t O c s e f. - p a 3 3 5 U .S ., h cri r s Section 4 41b(b)(2) (A), affirmed the dismissal of an indictmentof Phillip IMurray, President of the CO forplacing in the CIO news an editorial advocatingthe election of a Congressional candidate inMaryland. hile the decision does not explicitlyspeak to the issue, but turns instead on theSCO De and inherent constitutiolit 

of the
con'tri$butilon ;1nd eT..:n --but.o...5 ; .-.du liTmita-ions forUn or ~s an corp;oratio s i7l icit in the caseis the und-rst .,n tha-t the CIO NS, as the
toe -. y piication of the CIO was distributedto ~ci be,-jd .....re ...- _-5 of the unionsha b3 P ,2', to the CIO. In fact, the CIOhad printed eS':tr,- co as for distribution in the7Th ird Disti±ct. This .i1nlicit recognition by
thIe co u1r t in Is-'-it on bthe our inthe CIO case of comlnunications

b. t C s of lustria Organizations

(.7,.
i~4J~:

0 .0



S-5.

and the members of its members is reflected in

the statutory history underlying 2 U.S.C. §441b

(b) (1)(A). Thus, the House Report on the Bill

stated:

"The present law permits the AFL-CIO
to solicit all AFL-CIO Union members to

make voluntary contributions to COPE, its

political committee."
(H. Rep. No. 94-917, 94th Cong.
2d Sess. p. 8).

Congressman Hays, during debate in 1974 on the

exemptions stated:

"Thus, the bill exempts communications by

membership organizations to their members

and by corporations to their stockholders
from the definition of expenditure. That

exemption, of course, includes communica-
tions by a federated organization to its

members on behalf of its affiliates utilizing

C\11 its own or affiliate's resources and personnel,

and by a parent corporation on behalf of its

-,, subsidiaries."
(120 Cong. Rec. H. 10330
October 10, 1974).

f

In this rcgard, complainant attacks the different ,1al

treatment of the AFL-CIO and trade associations.

Historically, of course, Congress, in legislating

in this area, has sought to treat unions and v
corporations in the same manner, and only in the

0 1976 amendments did it enact statutorily a right

for trade associations to cstablish separate
segregated funds, and thus placed upon them the

specific restriction of soliciting members of their

members only if permission was granted by the

corporate members. That statutory background for

classifving trade associations differently from

union (or corporate) groups was also, as noted by the
Commv.:' sion in its j'e tification for its regulations,

r1,CM_'.feC by the ahb_:':'v'tc of leris]ative history
... ' that Co 7e in! - .- i.:-,d trade associations

t-0, t. olc o s oic :: ' eA of their memb ers
,C sc'r acn-oe- v cocluded , in light

o.1 t- ' -. reK.:::' ,ti on p oo o. S the sCatute
(- () ( ) t _it could not- permit

t--dasciC~~)atices to s-oli cit from the members of

C..
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Second, complainant argues that if the 
AFL-CIO can

solicit members of its members, the statute does

not permit the members to have separate 
contribution

limits. As an initial matter, complainant's

insistence that the communication provision and

the contribution limitation must be seen as identical

seem inappropriate. Section 44lb(b)(2) places

communication and registration and get-out-the-vote

drives outside the definition of contribution 
and

expenditures. Thus, the issue as to the extent of

the AFL-CIO communications is severable from the

contribution issue. In any event, the Commission's

conclusion that the statute was designed to 
set

separate contribution limits for the AFL-CIO and its

constituent member unions is based on legislative

history. Thus, the Conference Report accompanying

the 1976 amendments which added the non-proliferation

provisions here in question, pointedly stated:

"All of the political coLmittees set up

by a single international union and its

local unions are treated as a single political

committee.

"All of the political conmittees set up by

the AFL-CIO and its state and local central

bodies are treated as a single political
committee."

(H. Rep. No. 94-1057, 94th
Cong., 2d Sess., p. 58)

The Commission thus concluded that the statutory

provision setting single contributiol limits for
"political committees established or mainLained

or financed or controlled by . . . any labor

organization, . . or local unit of such . . .

labor organization" was not intended to cover the

AFL-CIO and its constituent member unions.

I trust the foregoing ex]lanst ion sat isf actorily

informs you of the basis o.f the Comiss-Lon' s decision.

S inereloY yor,: S

C-71



COMPLAINT WLED WITH THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION t 44L4Ai 7
I i.j

October 30, 1978i .

Pursuant to 2 U.S.C. Section 437gl) MJ, 3t& a io0IlRight to

Work Committee (NRWC) and Henry L. Walther, a federal voter and

citizen of Virginia, believe that Joseph Christie and The Christie

Committee, his principal campaign committee, have violated Section

441a(a)(2)(A) of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as

amended, by accepting illegal contributions in excess of the $5,000

limit, per election, from a single multi-candidate political action

committee or group of such committees controlled by a common source.

During the period of the 1978 elections, Christie and his political

committee have accepted $54,150.00 in illegal contributions from

AFL-CIO controlled PACs.

Under 2 U.S.C. 441a(a)(5), "all contributions made by a political

committee established or financed or maintained or controlled by any

corporation, labor organization, or any other person, including any

parent, subsidiary, branch, division, department, or local unit of

such corporation, labor organization, or any other person, or by any

group of such persons, shall be considered to have been made by

a single political committee..." (emphasis added). It is clear from

the past statements of Mr. Meany and Mr. Barkan, his political

staffer, that the political efforts of the AFL-CIO and its member

unions, are coordinated and commonly directed in exactly the way

contemplated by the statute's prohibition. The various AFL-CIO union

political PACs are clearly covered by the common $5,000 limit. Their

total of $54,150.00 in contributions to Christie exceeds this amount

for both the primary and general elections and is thus an illegal

contribution and a serious violation of the law.

The 1978 campaign has been witnessing an incredible display of

organized labor's disregard for the law. The AFL-CIO treats its 14

million-member federation as one organization for the purposes of

fundraising for its main PAC, COPE-PCC, for its multi-million dollar

registration campaigns, for its get-out-the-vote drives, and for its

massive political communications program, while on the other hand, it

attempts to evade contribution limits on all its sub-PACs by treating

them as separate political units. This fiction flies not only in the

face of the provision of the non-proliferation section of the law,

441a(a)(5), but it also violates one of the basic purposes of the



original Federal 1rrupt Practices Act, andtfe newer contribution

limits. That is to keep the power of large monolithic units and their

attendant corruption and undue influence out of the federal election

process.

Big Labor's ability to promise its handpicked candidates for

federal office $20,000 or $40,000 or even $100,000 in cash per

election, while all other interest groups are limited to $5,000, makes

a mockery of fairness and election reform. Organized labor's use of

compulsory membership dues money to channel these PAC funds and pay

for their solicitation makes this practice that much more inde-

fensible. Christie's receipt of such illegal excessive monies

represents the real threat of corruption and undue influence aimed at

by 2 U.S.C. Section 441a(a)(2)(A) and Section 441a(a)(5). We strongly

ask the Commission to take immediate action to stop this abuse before

the November 7 election. The American people deserve a Congress that

is not "bought" by any special interest group.

For the ease of the Commission, we have excerpted all the contri-

butions made by AFL-CIO union PACs to Christie for both the primary

and the general election of 1978, to date. They are listed in the

Appendix following.

Reed Larson, President, The National Right to Work Committee,

8316 Arlington Boulevard, Suite 600, Fairfax, Virginia 22038, and

Henry L. Walther, a federal voter and citizen of Virginia, being first

duly sworn both say that they have read the foregoing complaint and

know the contents thereof, and that the same is true on information

and belief. This complaint is not being filed on behalf of, or at the

request or suggestion of, any didate for federal office.

Reed Larson

Henr . Walther

Subscribed and sworn to before me this & 4 day of

__ __ __ __ _ __ __ __ _ , 1978.

Notary Public

My commission expires Q q
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NA M oF PAC DATE $ AMOUNTf Ir i-l - v I- ofIOWgv f • . .. ..--

AFL-CIO Cope Pol. Contributions Committee 1/18/78 .Q.000.00

Air Line Pilots Asso. Intl.-PAC 4/7/78 .2,QQ.00
IBEW Local 59, Good Citizenship Committee
Intn'l Brotherhood of Elec_ Workpr 4/1_/g____N._
Amalgamated Clothing & Textile Workers
Union - Political Action Committee
Amal. Meat Cutters & Retail Food Store Emp.
Union, Local 342 - Meat Cutters & Butcher

Apr.

Mar. 78

500.00

1000.00
I

I I I

American Fed. of Teachers - Committee
On Political Education Jan. 78 500.00
Carpenters Legislative Improvement Com. -
Carpenters and Joiners of America 3/23/78 1,000.00
Cope Committee of the United Rubber, Cork,
Linoleum and Plastic Workers of America 4/25/78 500.00
CWA-Cope Political Contributions Committee
Communications Workers of America 2/13/78 5,000.00
Engineers Political & Education Committee
Operating Engineers Intl. Union 3/3Z78 2,500.00
Laborers' Political League
Laborers' Intl. Union of N.A. . 4/5/7AI.I .__ _

ILQWUInt . Ladies Garment Workers Campaian Com. 3/20/78 2.000_00
NMU Pol. & Legislative Org. on Watch -
Maritime Union of America June7A 7 16000-00
Oil, Chem & Atomic Wkrs. Intl. Union - OCAW
Political & Legislative League Apr. 78 i00.00
Public Emp. Org. to Promote Legislative
Equal. QCC - Amer. Fed, of St. County Emp. 3/20/78 1.000.00
Railway Clerks Political League - Railway,
Airline & Steamship Clerks 4/11/78 2,000.00

It 2/3/78 1,000.00

Retail Clerks International Union
Retail Clerks International Association 4/20/782.50000
Seafarers Pol. Activity Donation "SPAD" -
Seafarers Intl. Union of N.A. 2/27/7R_5000-00
Machinists Non-Partisan Political League
Machinists and Aerospace Workers 3/29/78 500000
MEBA Political Action Fund -
Marine Engineers Beneficial Asso. 4/I0/7 2 2.500.00
United Steelworkers of America Political
Action Fund 1/24/78 5,000.00
AFL-CIO
Texas Committee on Political Education 4/7/78 150.00

to to_4/17/78 100.00
Transport Workers'Union Political Contri-
butions Committee Mar. 78 3,000.00
AFL-CIO
Texas Committee on Political Education 10/11/77 200.00
United Transportation Union - Transportation
Political Education League Jan. 78 1,000.00

o i Mar. 78 2,000.00

"___Apr..78 1,000.00

TOTAL _;54,150.00
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